
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

March 03, 2020 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Presentations 
1. Scheduled Public Comments-Chatov 

  

Minutes 
2. February 04, 2020 Minutes 

3. February 18, 2020 Minutes 

  

Calendars 
4. March-May 2020 Calendars 

  

Consent Agenda 
5. Motion to accept as information the February 2020 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $737,820.51, TSPLOST in the amount of $203,972.90, SPLOST in the amount of 

$218,340.46, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $1,031,003.39 and the 

February 2020 financials. 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
6. Danny Bell, on behalf of B&B Dairy, is requesting Conditional Use approval to allow a 

manufactured home to be used as a farm tenant dwelling to be placed on 71.19 acres 

located at 4841 Bethany Road (Tax Parcel 060-006).  

7. Morgan County Planning & Development is requesting a text amendment to Chapter 

10.8.1 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance regarding paving.  

  

New Business 
8. AFG Grant Submission 

9. Recreation Board Vacancy Discussion 

10. County Manager Report 

11. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
12. Real Estate 
  

1



2



3



February 04, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Ronald H. 

Milton., Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr., 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry and staff Member Kim            

Cox.       

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion made by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve agenda with the 

removal of item #15, Commissioner Liaison Reports.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

4TH GRADE PRESENTATION 

Morgan County 4th grade students presented their water park project. 

 

AUDIT PRESENTATION 

Finance Director, Lori Sayer presented the county audit. 

 

LYNDA BROWN-AMERICA'S DOCUMENTS OF LAW & GOVERNMENT 

Lynda Brown discussed America’s Documents of Law and Government. 

 

FOUR COUNTY UPDATE 

Bob Hughes with the Morgan County Chamber gave a JDA update. 

 

MINUTES 
January 07, 2020 Minutes  

January 21, 2020 Minutes 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the minutes as 

presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

  

CALENDARS 
County Manager, Adam Mestres reviewed February-April 2020 calendars.  

  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to accept as information the January 2020 payables to include General Fund in the amount of 

$827,901.91, TSPLOST in the amount of $318,824.10, SPLOST in the amount of $56,167.97, General 

Fund electronic payments in the amount of $8,293.86 and the January 2020 financials. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the consent agenda as 

presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

RV Hardship Request 

4



February 04, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

At the January 7th, 2020 BOC meeting a request from Bobby Richards was heard for a hardship request to 

allow his son, Terry Richards, to live in a RV on his farm to help care for him.   

 

This request was tabled to investigate the septic system and electrical.  After Planning Director, Chuck 

Jarrell, spoke with Lynette Knight with the Health Department concerning the sewage holding tank, it was 

found to not be legal.  Under State law O.C.G.A 12-15-1, sewage holding tanks are only permitted for 

construction trailers and special events.   

 

Jarrell also inspected the electrical and determined it to be in a safe operational condition. 

 

If the Board decides to grant the Hardship, Mr. Richards will need to install a State approved septic system 

to handle sewage.  Jarrell also recommends the Hardship be limited to twelve months.  If the need for 

Hardship is to be extended, Mr. Richards would need to come back before the Board for an extension. 

 

Commissioner Riden asked Mr. Richards if he would be willing to move the RV closer to the home to tie 

into the septic system and run internet cables to the home. 

 

Mr. Richards stated he liked where the RV was located and asked the Board if he could remove the holding 

tank and utilize the RV tanks.  He would ensure the tanks are pumped regularly and stated twelve months 

would give him enough time to make other arrangement. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden to approve the hardship request for twelve months in current location, 

to remove holding tanks and utilize RV tanks to be pumped regularly.  Motion died for lack of a second. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris deny the hardship request. 

Motion passed 3-1 with Milton voting to deny and Riden voting against denial. 

 

Discussion of Clothes Closet Building 

The Board discussed the condition of the Clothes Closet roof. 

 

Pitney Bowes Lease Renewal 

The current postage meter lease with Pitney Bowes will expire June 29th, 2020.  The current machine will 

no longer be serviced, so a replacement model is recommended with the proposed contract renewal.  The 

new monthly rate will be $194.00, a $10.94 increase from the previous lease which was $183.04 monthly.  

The proposed lease is for 36 months and will expire June 29th, 2023. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the Pitney Bowes lease 

renewal for 36 months expiring June 29th, 2023 for $194.00 per month. Unanimously Approved. 

 

Animal Services Shelter Fencing 

New and replacement fencing for outdoor kennel and exercise spaces at the Animal Services Shelter is a 

planned SPLOST project.  Bids were solicited from several vendors but only two bids were submitted.  

The project was awarded to D&D Fencing for $8,400 and appropriate approvals were obtained.  Once 

D&D Fencing began work on January 29th, 2020, it was discovered that inaccurate measurements were 

used by both vendors to quote the project.  D&D Fencing provided a quote for $4,200 to complete the full 

scope of work.  Therefore, the total cost of the project is $12,600. 

 

5



February 04, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the additional $4,200 

to complete the fencing project for Animal Services. Unanimously Approved. 

 

Purchase of Roll Off Truck 

The purchase of a replacement roll-off truck is a planned SPLOST purchase.  $175,000 was allocated to 

purchase the roll-off truck.  The new truck will replace the 1999 Volvo with 452,500 miles.  An RFP was 

posted on the County’s website and the Georgia Procurement Registry.  Two bids were received and have 

been evaluated.  The recommendation is to purchase a replacement roll-off truck from Peach State for 

$148,403.35. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve purchase of a roll-off 

truck from Peach State for $148,403.35. Unanimously Approved. 

 

Replacement Compacter Containers 

There are two containers used at the compactor sites that are in need of replacement.  Public Buildings and 

Public Works have repaired the units multiple times in the past and can no longer be repaired.  Only two 

vendors submitted quotes.  The recommendation is to purchase two containers from Rhino Containers for 

a cost of $13,650.00.  Additionally, this was not a budgeted expense.  Therefore, a budget amendment to 

transfer $14,650.00 from contingency to Solid Waste is needed. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Milton, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve purchase of two 

containers from Rhino Containers for $13,650.00 and motion to approve budget amendment to transfer 

$13,650 from contingency to Solid Waste. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 
Public comments were made by: 

Gary Savage, Morgan County Resident 

  

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular 

session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION-PERSONNEL 
  

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive Session to 

discuss personnel. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive Session Legal 

Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Regular 

Session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular 

session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

6



February 04, 2020 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 
 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk      LB 

7



February 18, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Ronald H. 

Milton., Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr., 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry and County Clerk 

Leslie Brandt. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 
 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda as 

presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

  

DISCUSSION OF CLOTHES CLOSET BUILDING ROOF 

County Manager, Adam Mestres discussed the roof replacement cost for the Clothes Closet building.  

One of four contractors that attended the pre-bid meeting submitted a roof replacement bid with a few 

different options.  The lowest bid received is $81,931.06. 

 

Bob Nesbit stated the current building is in an ideal location with convenient access to the public.  Other 

Morgan County residents expressed concern over the condition of the current building and its future. 

 

The Board will continue to explore options to resolve this issue at a later date. 

 

ISO GRADING RESULTS 

Fire Chief, Jeff Stone, updated the Board on the ISO grading results. 

 

STATION 6 FIRE KNOCKER CONVERSION 

The Fire Department purchased a military vehicle from the Federal Property Procurement Program for 

$100.00.  To convert the vehicle to replace knocker 6 will cost $22,081.25. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to the conversion cost for 

$22,081.25.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

TRACTOR PURCHASE 

An RFP was issued to replace four tractors, two dual wing rotary cutters and two rotary cutters.  Complete 

bids were received from seven companies.  After review of all bids, the recommendation is to purchase 

the tractors and cutters from Youngblood Tractor for $273,634, to be paid from TSPLOST. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to approve the purchase of 

two Massey Ferguson 6712’s and two Massey Ferguson 6713’s from Youngblood Tractor for 

$277,634.00.  Unanimously Approved. 

8



February 18, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF BUCKHEAD ANNEXATION 

The County received notice from the City of Buckhead with the intent to annex seven parcels totaling 

approximately 487 acres on Seven Islands Road.  The annexation will go before the Planning Commission 

Board March 26th, 2020 along with a rezoning request to be included in the annexation for interstate 

commercial.  

 

KNIGHT ROAD CULVERT DISCUSSION 

Due to the extensive amount of rainfall the County has received over the last couple of months, a portion 

of the paved roadway on Knight Road is separating from the soil.  This portion of the road is elevated 

about 25’ feet above the ground and has a 48” cross drain that goes under the roadway.  Each side of the 

road is held up by a stone wall.  Even though there is not an immediate danger, to be cautious, this portion 

of the road has been closed until it can be repaired.  The management team has reached out to Georgia 

Civil for recommendations on how to correct the issue. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments were made by: 

Steve Harrington, Buckhead Resident 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION –REAL ESTATE 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive Session to 

discuss real estate. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive Session Legal 

Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive Session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Regular Session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously 

Approved.  

 

 

 

 

9



February 18, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 4841 Bethany Road    

Property tax parcel: 060-006  

Acreage: 71.19 acres  

Applicant: B&B Dairy 

Applicant’s Agent: Danny Bell   

Property Owner: B&B Dairy/Jackie Bell, 2331 Seven Islands Road 

Existing Use: Dairy 

Proposed Use: Dairy  

 

Summary 
Danny Bell, 

on behalf of 

B&B Dairy is 

requesting 

Conditional 

Use approval 

to allow a 

manufactured 

home for a 

farm tenant 

dwelling on 

71.19 acres 

located at 

4841 

Bethany 

Road. The 

property is 

across 

Bethany 

Road from 

the more 

recognizable 

dairy 

buildings (the 

silos and 

large barns). The property already contains 3 manufactured homes:  two double-wide homes and one 

single wide home. The applicant has not specified whether the proposed home will be a single wide or 

double wide, as they are still searching for a home to place on the site. Therefore, the request is for 

approval for a manufactured home without size identification. The existing 3 homes are circled in red. 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Manufactured Home 

        

26



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 
 

The applicant has indicated that the new home, if approved, will be placed near the existing homes off 

Bethany Road in the area identified by the yellow oval. The two existing homes on Bethany Road are 

circled in red. The left home is a double wide; the right home is a single wide.  

 

The Morgan County Zoning Ordinance states that a tenant dwelling for full time employees of working 

farms are allowed as a conditional use in AG and AR zoning when located on the same lot or tract of land 

as the principal residence, on the basis of one residential structure per minimum allowable lot acreage in 

addition to the minimum lot area required for the principal residence, and subject to all dimensional 

requirements. The principal residence is not located on the parcel where the proposed home is to be 

located. It is located on the same parcel as the dairy buildings across Bethany Road and faces Seven 

Islands Road. The parcel has enough acreage for an additional home. The area identified for location is 

adequately sized to meet dimensional requirements.  

 

 

 

27



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

 
 

The zoning map, left, shows the surrounding parcels zoned AG or AR. The Comprehensive Plan’s 

Character Area Map, right, shows the entire area as Rural Beauty.  

28



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Staff Comments 

        
The request does not strictly meet the requirements for a farm tenant dwelling, as the principal 

residence is not on the same parcel. However, the parcel where the proposed home is to be located is 

part of the dairy and farm tenant dwellings are already located on the property. 

 

Staff is not concerned that the applicant has not specified whether the proposed manufactured home 

will be a single wide or a double wide. The property already contains examples of each as farm tenant 

housing, therefore, approval of either will not set a precedent.  

29



30



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Applicant: Morgan County Planning & Development 

Applicant’s Agent: N/A   

Zoning Ordinance: Article 10 Parking & Loading Requirements  

  

  

Summary 

        
There have been several discussions in recent months regarding the increasingly popularity of attached 

housing with developers in surrounding counites. In the unincorporated county, townhouses and 

apartments are unlikely due to the lack of utilities, but duplexes are possible as long as water is available 

(the Health Department will work with duplexes regarding septic tanks). Three duplexes were 

constructed on Highway 83 last year with water from Madison and septic tanks. The Director of Planning 

and Development talked to the builder about paved parking, but could not enforce paving because 

Chapter 10.8.1 exempts two family dwellings with single family dwellings. The builder of the three 

duplexes on Highway 83 told Staff he had received over 1000 rental inquiries for the 6 units. Due to their 

success and the possibility of additional duplexes in the county, Staff would like the ability to enforce 

paving requirements to maintain a quality, uniform standard at future duplex projects.  

It should be noted that this is an interim measure. Staff is working on language for the Morgan County 

Zoning Ordinance to address attached housing, similar to that recently passed in Bostwick and Rutledge.  

Current Language with Proposed Change 

        
Chapter 10.8.1 Surfacing and Curbing 
 
All off-street parking areas and access drives for uses other than single family and two family dwellings 
shall be improved with a permanent dust free surface consisting of a minimum of a 6 inch graded 
aggregate base overlaid with a 2 inch Type B binder and a 1.5 inch Type F asphalt surface. 

Petition for:  Text Amendment 

        

31



32



33



34



35


	Top
	1. Scheduled Public Comments-Chatov 03032020
	Chatov Public Comment 03032020

	2. February 04, 2020 Minutes
	02-04-2020 BOC Minutes-DRAFT

	3. February 18, 2020 Minutes
	02-18-2020 BOC Minutes-DRAFT

	4. March-May 2020 Calendars
	March-May 2020 Calendars

	5. Financials Feb 2020-03032020
	Feb 2020 Financials

	6. Bell conditional use
	staffreport.february.bell.cu.farmhelp

	7. Duplex parking text amendment
	staffreport.february.mc.ta.duplexparking

	8. AFG Grant Submission 03032020
	AFG Grant Submission 03032020

	9. Recreation Board Vacancy Discussion 03032020
	Rec. Board Discussion 03032020

	10. County Manager Report
	11. Public Comments on Agenda Items
	12. Executive-Real Estate 03032020
	Bottom

